UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

IN THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF MICHIGAN
______________________________________________

PRIMITIVO GARCIA ANDRADE, 

JOSE DE JESUS GARCIA AGUINAGA, 

AND JORGE JAVIER LOPEZ,

Case No.

Plaintiffs,

Hon.

v.

MADRA=S CAFÉ CORP., a Michigan 

corporation d/b/a INDIA KITCHEN and


CLASS ACTION
MYSORE WOODLANDS, MADRAS


COMPLAINT AND

MASALA KITCHENS, INC., a Michigan 


JURY DEMAND
corporation, MADRAS WOODLANDS, INC.,

a Michigan corporation, AVVA=S KITCHEN,

Inc., a Michigan corporation, AND BALAGURU 

RAMASAMY, an individual. 

Defendants.  

________________________________________/

Michigan Migrant Legal Assistance Project, Inc.

Dennis A. Dettmer, PLLC

Teresa M. Hendricks-Smitley (P46500)


Dennis A. Dettmer (P12708)

Attorney for the Plaintiffs




Attorney for the Plaintiffs

648 Monroe NW





535 Griswold St Ste 1350

Suite 318






Detroit, MI  48226‑3669

Grand Rapids, MI 49503




(313) 963‑0707

Phone:  616-454-5055

_______________________________________/

There is no other pending or resolved civil action 

arising out of the transaction or occurrence alleged in the complaint.
PRELIMINARY STATEMENT
This is a civil action brought on behalf of the Plaintiffs, former employees of the Defendants, and all similarly situated current and former employees of the Defendants who were employed at various times from 1999 to 2003.   Plaintiffs complain that the Defendants violated their rights under the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA), 28 U.S.C.'201 et seq., along with causing them to suffer damages due to Breach of Contract and Unjust Enrichment. 

JURISDICTION
This court has jurisdiction of this action pursuant to the following: 

(a)
28 U.S.C  '1331 (Federal Question);

(b)
28 U.S.C. '1337 (Interstate Commerce);

(c)
29 U.S.C. '216(b) (FLSA);

(d)
28 U.S.C '1367 (Supplemental Jurisdiction).
PARTIES
1. Upon information and belief, Plaintiffs all resided in the county of Oakland, in the State of Michigan, during all relevant times.

2. Plaintiffs worked for Defendants during all relevant times at their respective places of business.

3. Defendant MADRAS CAFÉ CORP., (hereinafter AMadras@) is a Michigan corporation d/b/a INDIA KITCHEN and MYSORE WOODLANDS and whose resident agent is: c/o Usharani Ganesan, 6250 W. Stonebridge, West Bloomfield, Michigan 48322.  (See Exhibits 1, 2 & 3)

4. Defendant MADRAS MASALA KITCHENS, INC., (hereinafter AMasala@) is a Michigan corporation d/b/a MADRAS MASALA and whose resident agent is: c/o Prabhakaran Pandian, 328 Maynard, Ann Arbor, Michigan, 48104. (See Exhibits 4 & 5)

5. Defendant MADRAS WOODLANDS, INC., (hereinafter AWoodlands@) is a Michigan corporation whose resident agent is: c/o Balaguru Ramasamy, 20507 Aspen Lane, Bloomfield Hills, MI 48302.  (See Exhibits 6)

6. Defendant  AVVA=S KITCHEN, INC., (hereinafter AAvva=s@) is a Michigan corporation d/b/a AVVA=S KITCHEN in the state of Ohio and whose resident agent is: c/o Balaguru Ramasamy, 20507 Aspen Lane, Bloomfield Hills, MI 48302.   (See Exhibits 7)

7. Upon information and belief, Defendant BALAGURU RAMASAMY (hereinafter ABalaguru@) is the owner and/or president of MADRAS WOODLANDS, INC. and AVVA=S KITCHEN, INC. and is a resident of the County of Oakland, State of Michigan.   
CLASS ALLEGATIONS
8. Count I of this action is brought pursuant to the Fair Labor Standards Act (AFLSA@), 29 U.S.C. '216 (b).  Named plaintiffs bring this count on their own behalf and on behalf of all other current or former employees who (1) worked or are working for the Defendants at any time during the years 1999 to 2003, and (2) were or are subject to the violations of the FLSA described in Count I.  Plaintiffs do not bring Count I on behalf of any executive, administrative, and professional employees exempt from coverage under the FLSA.
9. With respect to Count I, a collective action under the FLSA is appropriate because the employees just described are Asimilarly situated@ to the named plaintiffs.  29 U.S.C. ' 216(b); Hoffman-La Roche, Inc.  v.  Sperling, 493 U.S. 165, 170 (1989).
10. Count II of this action is a supplemental claim for breach of contract, brought pursuant to Michigan law.  This count is brought by plaintiffs as a class action pursuant to Rule 23 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, on behalf of all persons similarly situated.  The class plaintiffs represent consists of all past and present employees who (1) worked or are working for any employer defendant at any time on or after the date six years prior to the filing of this lawsuit, and (2) were or are affected by breaches of contract of the sort described in Count II.

11. Count III of this action is a supplemental claim brought for unjust enrichment pursuant to Michigan law.  This count is brought by plaintiffs as a class action pursuant to Rule 23 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, on behalf of all persons similarly situated.  The class plaintiffs represent consists of all past and present employees who (1) worked or are working for any employer defendant at any time on or after the date three years prior to the filing of this lawsuit, and (2) were or are affected by the failure to have been compensated for the benefit they conferred of the sort described in Count III.

12. Certification of a class of persons who may receive relief pursuant to counts II through XIV is appropriate pursuant to Fed. Civ. P. 23(b)(2) and/or 23(b)(3) because:

a.
the class is so numerous that it is impractical to bring all its members before this Court;

b.
there are questions of law and fact common to the class;

c.
the named Plaintiffs= claims are typical of those of the class;

d.
the named Plaintiffs will fairly and adequately protect the interests of the class; and plaintiffs have retained counsel experienced in matters of this type;

e.
the Defendants have acted and refused to act on grounds generally applicable to the class, thereby making appropriate final injunctive relief and corresponding declaratory relief with the respect to the class as a whole.  Plaintiffs are asking the court to enjoin defendants= practices that violate the FLSA, or Michigan law.  If this relief is granted it will benefit the entire class; and

f.
questions of law common to the members of the class predominate over any questions affecting only individual members and a class action is superior to other available methods for the fair and efficient adjudication of the controversy.  Testimony and evidence about defendants practices will affect and apply to the claims of all class members.  Purely individual questions will be restricted to damages questions should liability be established.  If no class action is certified, it will make it impractical for individual class members to pursue relief, or may lead to a large number of separate lawsuits, all of which will rely on the same kind of proof and take roughly the same amount of time, causing an unnecessary burden on the courts. 
FACTS COMMON TO ALL COUNTS
13. On or about January 2001, Plaintiff Primitivo Garcia-Andrade (hereinafter APrimitivo@) was offered employment by Defendant Balaguru as a cook and/or general laborer for Defendant Woodlands.

14. Throughout Plaintiff Primitivo=s employment with Defendants Balaguru and Woodlands, Defendant Balaguru also suffered or permitted Plaintiff Primitivo to work for Defendants Madras, Masala, and Avva=s. 

15. Plaintiff Primitivo was employed by Defendants from January 2001 to November 2003.

16. Plaintiff Primitivo worked from 9:00am to 12:00am seven days a week, except for two weeks in January of 2003.

17. Plaintiff Primitivo worked approximately 15,315.00 hours (6,105.57 regular hours and 9,656.43 overtime hours) for Defendants.

18. Plaintiff Primitivo was paid a wage of $1,400.00 per month from January 2001 to July 2003.

19. Plaintiff Primitivo was paid a wage of $1,300.00 per month from July 2003 to August 2003.

20. Plaintiff Primitivo was not paid for work performed from September 2003 to December 2003.

21. Upon information and belief, Plaintiff Primitivo=s monthly wage was not based on hours worked.

22. On or about February 2002, Defendant Balaguru hired Plaintiff Jose De Jesus Garcia Aguinaga (hereinafter AJose@) to work as a cook and/or general laborer with the Defendants.

23. Plaintiff Jose worked from 9:00am to 12:00am seven days a week for the Defendants at their restaurants.

24. Plaintiff Jose worked from February 2002 to September 2002 for the Defendants at their restaurants.

25. Plaintiff Jose worked approximately 3,615.00 hours (1,394.29 regular hours and 2,220.71 overtime hours) for Defendants.

26. Plaintiff Jose was paid a wage of $750.00 per month for all hours worked from February 2002 to September 2002.

27. Upon information and belief, Plaintiff Jose=s monthly wage was not based on hours worked.  

28. On or about April 2002, Defendant Balaguru hired Plaintiff Jorge Javier Lopez (hereinafter AJorge@) to work as a cook and/or general laborer for Defendants.

29. Plaintiff Jorge worked from 9:00am to 12:00am seven days a week for the Defendants at their restaurants.

30. Plaintiff Jorge worked from April 2002 to May 2002 for the Defendants at their restaurants.

31. Plaintiff Jorge worked approximately 915 hours (348.57 regular hours and 566.43 overtime hours) for Defendants.

32. Plaintiff Jorge was paid a wage of $525.00 per month for all hours worked from February 2002 to September 2002.

33. Upon information and belief, Plaintiff Jorge=s monthly wage was not based on hours worked.   

34. Upon information and belief, the class Plaintiffs were paid a wage that was not based upon all hours worked.

35. Upon information and belief, the class Plaintiffs were not paid the minimum wage for all hours worked.

36. Upon information and belief, the class Plaintiffs were not paid overtime compensation for all hours worked in excess of forty hours per work week.

37. The Defendants did not post or maintain a notice explaining the rights of the Plaintiff under the Fair Labor Standards Act. 

38. Plaintiffs, through their attorney, have exhausted attempts to resolve this matter without litigation, but the Defendants have refused any efforts made towards reaching an amicable resolution.
39. To date, Plaintiffs are still uncompensated for work performed for the Defendants= benefit.

COUNT I

Violation of the Fair Labor Standards Act
40. Plaintiffs incorporate paragraphs 1-38 above.
41. At all times relevant to this action, Defendants were Plaintiffs= Aemployer@ within the meaning of the Federal Fair Labor Standards Act (hereinafter, AFLSA@), 29 U.S.C. '203(d).
42. At all times relevant to this action, Plaintiffs were  Aemployee[s]@ of the Defendants within the meaning of the FLSA, 29 U.S.C. '203(e)(1).

43. At all times relevant to this action, Defendants Asuffered or permitted@ the Plaintiffs to work, and thus Aemployed@ Plaintiffs within the meaning of the FLSA, 29 U.S.C. '203(g).

44. The FLSA  requires an employer to pay employees at least the federally mandated minimum wage of $5.15 per hour.  29 U.S.C. '206.
45. Plaintiffs were paid a base monthly salary that resulted in an amount less than the  minimum wage required under the FLSA.

46. Defendants violated this subsection by failing to pay the Plaintiffs at least $5.15 an hour.
47. The FLSA requires additional compensation for work in excess of forty hours per week of at least one and a half times the employees regular rate, 29 U.S.C. ' 207.

48. Defendants violated this subsection by failing to pay the Plaintiffs  $7.73 per hour for all hours worked in excess of forty hours per week.

49. Defendants failed to Apost and keep posted a notice explaining the [FLSA]@ as required by 29 CFR '516.4.
50. The FLSA, 29 U.S.C. '216(b), provides that as a remedy for a violation of the Act, an employee is entitled to their unpaid minimum wages, plus an additional equal amount in liquidated damages, costs of court, and reasonable attorney fees.

Breach of Contract
51. Plaintiff incorporates by reference paragraphs 1-38.
52. Defendants entered into an employment contract with Plaintiffs.

53. Defendant breached the employment contract into which they entered with the Plaintiffs by failing to comply with the promised terms and conditions of employment.

54. As a result of Defendants= breach of the contract with Plaintiffs, Plaintiffs have suffered substantial injury, and they are entitled to actual, incidental, and consequential damages, including costs and attorney fees.

Unjust Enrichment
55. Plaintiff incorporates paragraphs 1-38 above.
56. Plaintiffs conferred a benefit to the Defendants for the work provided by Plaintiffs during their period of employment.

57. It is inequitable for Defendants to retain the benefits of the work performed without compensating Plaintiffs, under common law.  (See, Michigan Educational Employees Mutual Insurance v. Morris, 460 Mich. 180, 197; 596 N.W.2d 142, 151 (1999).)
58. As a result of the employer defendants= conduct, plaintiffs have suffered a loss of substantial income.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF
WHEREFORE, Plaintiff requests the following relief:

59. The actions of the Defendants complained of herein be adjudicated, decreed, and declared a breach of defendants= obligations under the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA), 28 U.S.C.'201 et seq., breach of contract, and unjust enrichment;

60. Defendants pay damages in an amount to be determined at trial for these violations; 

61. Defendants pay an equal amount in liquidated damages pursuant to the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA), 28 U.S.C.'201 et seq.;

62. Defendants pay reasonable attorney fees pursuant to the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA), 28 U.S.C.'201 et seq.;

63. Defendants pay prejudgment interest to plaintiffs on these damages;

64. The Court grant such other and further relief as the Court may deem just or equitable. 
Respectfully Submitted,

Michigan Migrant Legal Assistance Project, Inc.

By:
______________________________


________________________

Teresa M. Hendricks





Dennis A. Dettmer

Attorney for Plaintiffs




Attorney for Plaintiffs

JURY DEMAND

Pursuant to Rule 38 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, Plaintiff demands a jury trial.
By:
______________________________


________________________

Teresa M. Hendricks





Dennis A. Dettmer

Attorney for Plaintiffs




Attorney for Plaintiffs

